
 
 
 
 
Via E-mail and U.S. Mail 
 
July 3, 2008 
 
 
Mr. Fred Rubin 
Los Angeles County Department of Public Works 
Environmental Programs Division 
900 South Fremont Avenue, Annex 3rd Floor 
Alhambra, CA 91803-1331 
 
 
RE: Response to June 30, 2008 Letter regarding Finding of Conformance 
 
 
Dear Fred: 
 
We received your letter dated June 30, 2008.  In your letter, you indicated that you had 
received our May 21, 2008, Finding of Conformance Application, reviewed it and had 
determined that it was incomplete for three reasons.  We would like to address each of 
those concerns in this letter, so we can stay on schedule for Task Force consideration on 
July 17, 2008.   
 
Issue #1 – BFI must provide evidence that it has obtained approval from the Los Angeles 
County Department of Public Works for a combined “City/County Project” Fill 
Sequencing Plan for that portion within the County’s jurisdiction. 
 
BFI Response:  As I mentioned in our meeting on July 1, 2008, we submitted our 
combined City/County Joint Technical Document (JTD) to all agencies in early January 
2008.  Included within that JTD was a narrative and applicable drawings which outline 
the fill-sequencing plan for the combined landfill unit.  In letters, dated May 6th and May 
14th, I requested DPW’s review and approval of that fill-sequencing plan, and at the 
request of DPW, included Table 1, labeled “Diminishing Landfill Capacity Phase 
Construction”.  Table 1 shows the landfill construction and usage over a ten-year 
period.  This morning, I had our engineering firm, BAS forward via e-mail the fill-
sequencing documents, including capacity and airspace calculations, from the 
approved JTD to Martin Aiyetiwa.   For your ease of reference, attached to this e-mail is 
a pdf of all of those documents.  
 
Issue #2 – BFI must provide evidence that it has obtained Los Angeles City’s 
approval/determination to proceed to Phase II of the City Landfill. 
 



BFI Response:  We do not believe that we need City approval to commence joint 
landfill operations at this time.  Our position is supported by a November 13, 2003 letter 
from City of Los Angeles Planning Department (a copy of which is attached).  The City’s 
letter states, among other things, that “with the City’s approval of a fill design, the 
County CUP Condition 10.b was satisfied.”  (Letter at p. 2.) The letter goes on to say 
that: 
 

The “phasing” provisions do not require a City-only landfill in 
the first five years of operation (i.e., Phase I), and they do not 
call for the completion of Phase I before the joint 
City/County landfill can be developed (i.e., Phase II).  The 
only purpose of “phasing” was to establish time periods (five-
year intervals) within which the City would conduct 
comprehensive reviews to ensure that development and 
operation of the landfill within City territory was being carried 
out in compliance with the terms of the [Q] Conditions and 
the MMRP.  As illustrated by [Q] Conditions B.2.d.2 and 
B.2.d.3, “phasing” allows the City to monitor and periodically 
review landfill development within its own territory and to 
implement “corrective measures,” as necessary and 
appropriate, at specified times during the landfill 
development process.   

 
Ongoing development and operation of the Combined 
City/County Landfill will be subject to further discretionary 
approvals by the City, the County, and various regulatory 
agencies.  However, the overall “fill design” that was 
contemplated in County CUP Conditions 10.5 and 10.d has 
been approved, as provided by the City Zone Change, the 
General Plan Amendment, and the certified SEIR.   (Letter at 
p. 2. Underlining from original; Emphasis in italics.) 

 
 
 
Issue #3 – In Section 5, Waste Material to be Handled, BFI stated that “Consistent with its 
Waste Discharge Requirements, Sunshine Canyon Landfill accepts contaminated soils 
for disposal or use as daily cover in lined areas of the site.”  However, the use of 
contaminated soil for daily cover is prohibited by the City and County’s Land Use 
Permits. 
 
BFI Response:  We agree with your comment and have attached a revised 
replacement “Page 2” for insertion into the Finding of Conformance Application 
document. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your concerns.  We would hope that these 
responses are sufficient to keep us on the Task Force Agenda for July 17, 2008. 
 
 



 
Please feel free to call me at 818-833-6511, with any concerns or questions. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
David J. Hauser 
General Manager 
 
 
CC: Martin Aiyetiwa, County DPW 
 Carlos Ruiz, County DPW 
 Larry Hafetz, County Counsel 
 Michael Moore, County Counsel 
 Sorin Alexanian, County Planning 
 Maria Masis, County Planning 
 Gerry Villalobos, County DPH 
 Lari Sheehan, County CEO’s Office 
 Burt Kumagawa, County CEO’s Office 
 Tom Bruen, Esq 
 Tony Pelletier, Allied Waste 
 Greg Loughnane, Allied Waste 
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4. Project Design Capacity 
 

The total design capacity of the City/County Landfill is estimated to be 141.2 million 
cubic yards, of which approximately 50.7 million cubic yards is presently permitted 
in the existing City and County landfills.  Thus, approval of the City/County Landfill 
will add approximately 90.5 million cubic yards of permitted capacity to the facility.  
The total estimated amount of solid waste to be disposed in the City/County Landfill 
is approximately 91.1 million tons. 

 
5. Waste Material to be Handled 
 

The waste types received at SCL consist of non-hazardous residential, commercial, 
and inert/exempt waste classified in accordance with 27 CCR, Sections 20220 and 
20230, defining Class III and inert wastes. The municipal solid waste categories are 
described as follows:  
 

• Mixed Municipal Solid Wastes (including commercial and residential waste);  
• Non-hazardous industrial wastes (except those having high liquid content 

[>50 percent liquid by weight]); and  
• Construction/Demolition wastes that may be disposed of or are beneficially 

used and not disposed in the landfill; and  
• Green Wastes that are beneficially used and not disposed in the landfill.  

 
Typical residential non-hazardous solid waste includes, but is not limited to, 
household refuse, tree and lawn clippings, leaves and brush, scrap lumber and metal, 
appliances, furniture, wood chips, plastic containers, newspapers, cardboard and glass 
containers. Commercial and industrial waste typically includes, but is not limited to, 
food wastes, paper, corrugated cardboard, plastic, rubber, glass, mixtures of concrete, 
asphalt, wood, steel, brick and block.  
 
Universal wastes (fluorescent lamps, CRTs, instruments that contain mercury, 
batteries, and electronics) are prohibited for disposal at the site. SCL also does not 
landfill compostable material (other than incidental compostable material mixed with 
other landfilled loads) as defined in 14 CCR, Section 17850 as "any organic material 
that when accumulated will become active compost as defined in 14 CCR, Section 
17852(a)(I)" nor does SCL accept biosolids, untreated medical waste or asbestos 
wastes. 

 
The site may accept up to 6,600 tons per week of total exempt clean soil and waste 
for beneficial use (e.g., asphalt rubble and processed green material). 


